
 

 

 

Janie Berry 
Director of Legal Services 
County Hall 
Matlock 
Derbyshire 
DE4 3AG 
 
Extension 38372 
Direct Dial 01629 538372 
Ask for Anne Barrett 
 

 
PUBLIC 

 
To:  Members of Cabinet Member meeting - Young People 
 
 
 

Friday 25 October 2019 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
Please attend a meeting of the Cabinet Member meeting - Young 
People to be held at 2.00 pm on Tuesday, 5 November 2019 in County 
Hall, Matlock, DE4 3AG, the agenda for which is set out below. 
 
Yours faithfully, 

 
JANIE BERRY 
Director of Legal Services  
 
A G E N D A 
 
PART I - NON-EXEMPT ITEMS  
 
1.   Declarations of Interest  

 
To receive declarations of interest (if any) 
 

2.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 2) 
 
To confirm the non-exempt minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet Member - 
Young People held on 8 October 2019 
 

To consider the non-exempt reports of the Executive Director for Children's 
Services on: 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

3 (a)   Confirmation of Nominations of School Governors (Pages 3 - 4) 
 

3 (b)   Budget Monitoring 2019-20 - Period 5 (Pages 5 - 14) 
 

3 (c)   Dedicated Schools Grant Monitoring 2019-20 - Period 5 (Pages 15 - 18) 
 

3 (d)   New Primary Schools at Boulton Moor and Highfields Farm (Pages 19 - 24) 
 

3 (e)   Review of the council non-school based provision for the Duke of 
Edinburgh's Award (Pages 25 - 30) 
 

4.   Exclusion of the Public  
 
To move “That under Regulation 21 (1)(b) of the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England)  Regulations 
2000, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph(s)… of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972” 
 

PART II - EXEMPT ITEMS  
 
5.   Declarations of Interest  

 
To receive declarations of interest (if any) 
 

6.   Minutes (Pages 31 - 32) 
 
To confirm the exempt minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet Member - 
Young People held on 8 October 2019 
 

 



 

 

PUBLIC                                                                                  Agenda Item No. 2 
                                                                                                        
                                               
MINUTES of a meeting of the CABINET MEMBER – YOUNG PEOPLE held on 7 
October 2019 at County Hall, Matlock. 
 
 

PRESENT 
 

Cabinet Member - Councillor A Dale  
 

Also in attendance – Councillors J Patten and J Twigg  
 

61/19  MINUTES  RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the 
Cabinet Member for Young People held on 3 September 2019 be confirmed as a 
correct record and signed by the Cabinet Member. 
 
62/19  NEW INSTRUMENTS OF GOVERNMENT Under the School 
Governance (Constitution) (England) Regulations 2012; proposals had been 
received from school Governing Bodies for an amendment to their Instrument of 
Government. 
 
 RESOLVED that the new Instruments of Government be made for Whitfield 
St James’ CofE Primary School; Buxton Community School; and the Peak Tor 
Federation as detailed in the report.  
 
63/19  CONFIRMATION OF NOMINATIONS OF SCHOOL GOVERNORS 
RESOLVED to approve the nomination of the following person to serve as Local 
Authority Governors:- 
 
 J Riley   -  Gamesley Early Excellence Centre 
  
64/19  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  RESOLVED that the public, including 
the press, be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the remaining 
items on the agenda to avoid the disclosure of the kind of exempt information 
detailed in the following summary of proceedings:- 
 
SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS CONDUCTED AFTER THE PUBLIC, 
INCLUDING THE PRESS, WERE EXCLUDED FROM THE MEETING 
 
1. To confirm the exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 3 September 2019. 
 
2. To consider the exempt Report of the Executive Director for Children’s 

Services and the Director of Economy, Transport & Environment on Home 
to School Transport- Hazardous Routes Assessment (contains information 
which is likely to reveal the identity of any individual) 

 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 
 

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

CABINET MEMBER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE 
 

5 November 2019 

 
Report of Executive Director for Children’s Services  

 
CONFIRMATION OF NOMINATIONS OF SCHOOL GOVERNORS 

 
1.  Purpose of report 
 
To ask the Cabinet member to confirm the nominations of persons to serve as local 
authority school governors. 
 
2.  Information and Analysis   
 
Nominations to school governing boards are proposed as set out below.  
 
The Cabinet member is asked to confirm the nominations of persons to serve on the 
governing boards of these schools. 
 
Any appointments made by governing boards will be subject to the completion of a 
Declaration of Eligibility form, a proof of identity check and an enhanced DBS check. 
 
3.  Other considerations  
 
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been considered:- 
prevention of crime and disorder, equality of opportunity and health, legal, financial, 
personnel and property considerations. 
 
4.  Background Papers 
 
Registration forms of applicants. 
 
5.  Key Decision? 
 
No 
 
6.  Officer’s Recommendation 
 
That the nominations for persons to serve as local authority governors are confirmed. 
 
 

Jane Parfrement 
Executive Director for Children’s Services 

PUBLIC 
Agenda Item No. 3 (a) 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3(a)



2 
 

The Cabinet member is asked to confirm the nominations of the following persons to 
serve as local authority governors. 
 
 
Name School Nominating 

Councillor 
Appointment 

Amber Valley    
R Binns Heage Primary School T Ainsworth New Appointment 
    
North East    

M Emmens Holmesdale Infant School A Dale New appointment. 
    
 

Page 4



1 
 

PUBLIC 
Author:  Karen Gurney (x38755) 

Agenda Item 3(b) 
 

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

CABINET MEMBER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE 
 

5th November 2019 
 

Joint Report of the Executive Director of Children’s Services and the 
Director of Finance & ICT 

 
BUDGET MONITORING 2019-20 – PERIOD 5 (as at 31 August 2019) 

(YOUNG PEOPLE) 
 
 

1. Purpose of the Report 
 

To provide the Cabinet Member with an update of the Revenue Budget 
position of the Young People portfolio for 2019-20 up to the end of August 
2019 (Period 5). 
 
2. Information and Analysis 
 
2.1. Forecast Summary 

 
The net controllable budget for the Young People portfolio is £109.704m. 
 
The Revenue Budget Monitoring Statement prepared at period 5 indicates that 
there is a projected year-end overspend of between £6.200m to £7.600m 
depending on whether the rate of placements for children in care for the 
remainder of the financial year levels off or continues the trajectory seen over 
the past six months.  Based on known placements to end of August, the 
projected overspend is £5.132m. 
 
No earmarked reserves are available to support this overspend. 
 
The forecast outturn position includes the following significant items of income 
which may not continue at the same level in future years. 
 
£6.756 million – Dedicated Schools Grant income transferred to contribute to 
costs incurred within Children’s Services supporting Early Help services and 
children with additional needs. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3(b)



2 
 

The significant areas which make up this projection are shown in the table 
below: 

  Controllable 
Budget £m 

Projected 
Actuals £m 

Forecast 
Over/(Under) 

Spend £m 
Placements for Children 
in Care/unable to remain 
at home 

32.264  36.162  3.898  

Support for Children with 
Disabilities 5.544  6.353  0.809  

Children’s Safeguarding 
services 36.366  36.274  (0.093)  

Early Help & 
Preventative Services 6.077  6.576  0.499  

Home to School 
Transport 13.679  14.515  0.836  

Education support 
services 3.906 5.092  1.185  

Management, Finance, 
ICT and other support 
services 

4.730  4.532  (0.198)  

Pensions payable to 
former staff 4.774  4.984  0.210  

Redundancy 2.473  2.473  0.000 
Other grant income (2.147) (2.147) 0.000 
Unallocated budget 2.038  0.023  (2.015) 
Total 109.704  114.836  5.132  

 
2.2. Key Variances 

 
2.2.1. Placements for Children in Care/Unable to remain at home, overspend 

£3.898m. 
 
The overspend has increased since that reported in June due to new 
placements and is due to a greater number of placements required 
than can be funded from the current allocated budget.  Placement 
numbers have continued to rise steadily during the last 6 months. 

 
2.2.2. Support for children with disabilities, overspend £0.809m 

The projected overspend has reduced since June.  The June forecast 
included an allowance for the potential cost of high cost packages of 
support in line with that seen during 2018-19.  The forecast now only 
includes the expected costs of known support packages.  The 

Page 6



3 
 

increased demand for support and the complex needs of some 
individuals have led to the costs exceeding the allocated budget. 
 

2.2.3. Children’s Safeguarding services, underspend £0.093m 
The department is recruiting to increase the number of social workers 
to respond to the increased numbers of cases that require the 
involvement of the Authority.  Some of these posts are being filled by 
social workers from staffing agencies at a greater cost than employed 
staff.  The authority has taken measures to increase its attractiveness 
as an employer to social workers so that it can reduce its reliance on 
agency staff.  Spend on social workers and business support is below 
budget by £01.380m due to vacancies.  This is offset by overspends 
on child protection staff and on expenditure providing assistance to 
families in need. 
 

2.2.4. Early Help and Preventative services, overspend £0.499m 
The overspend is because of a shortfall compared to budget in the 
contributions from schools towards the Early Help Offer.  To a large 
extent, this is offset by vacant posts within the multi-agency and youth 
teams.  The service is in the concluding stages of a review process 
that will result in a more targeted early help service. 
 

2.2.5. Home to School Transport, overspend £0.836m 
There is increasing projected spend on transport for children with 
special educational needs (SEN) due to both an increase in the 
number of journeys that are being provided and in the cost of each 
journey.  The increase in cost is due to by both economic factors 
affecting contractors and an increased need for more specialised 
vehicles. 
 

2.2.6. Education Support services, overspend £1.185m 
There are several areas that are overspent.  The educational 
psychology and planning and assessment teams for children and 
young people with SEN are projected to be overspent by £0.740m due 
to increased numbers of children with SEN. 
 

2.2.7. Pensions payable to former staff, overspend £0.210m 
 
These costs represent pensions obligations payable to staff previously 
employed.  The majority of the cost relates to staff who left under 
efficiency programmes during the early 1990s. 
 

2.2.8. Redundancies, break even 
 
These costs include payments to school staff and other employees 
whose roles are expected to be redundant during 2019-20.  Schools 

Page 7



4 
 

make a contribution to the expected costs of school staff redundancies 
from their individual school budgets. 
 

2.2.9. Unallocated budget, underspend £2.015m 
 
This represents the budget released as a result of the changes to the 
early help offer.  It is being held to cover the anticipated loss of 
£1.767m of grant income that the government has signalled will be 
withdrawn from 2020-21.  It remains uncommitted in the interim to 
mitigate the department’s overspend against its current budget. 
 

2.3. Budget Savings 
 

Budget reductions totalling £3.013m were allocated for the year.  
  
The value of the savings initiatives which have been identified for 
implementation in the current year is £3.013m.   
 
It is forecast that £2.264m of savings will have been achieved by the year-end.  
The table below shows performance against the target. 
 
Identified Savings 
Initiatives 

Budget 
Reduction 
Amount £m 

Forecast to 
be Achieved 
by the end of 
2019-20 £m 

(Shortfall)/ 
Additional 
Savings 
Achieved £m 

Catering 0.208 0 (0.208) 
Ed Psychology 0.115 0 (0.115) 
Children's Centres 1.000 1.000 0 
Donut Centre 0.075 0 (0.075) 
Sport, Outdoor and 
Residential Education 
(SORE) 

0.180 0.126 (0.054) 

Home to School transport 0.090 0 (0.090) 
Care Leavers Employment 
Programme 0.162 0.162 0 

Early Help 0.318 0.318 0 
Business support functions 0.695 0.488 0.207 
In-year temporary 
reductions 0.170 0.170 0 

Total of Identified 
Savings Initiatives 3.013 2.264 (0.749) 
Shortfall/(Surplus) of 
Identified Savings 0   

Total Savings Target 3.013   
 

Page 8



5 
 

Budget Reductions £m 
Prior Year B/f 0.000 
Current Year 3.013 
Total Savings Target 3.013 

 

2.4 Growth Items and One-off Funding 

The portfolio received the following additional budget allocations in 2019-20: 
 
2.4.1 Social Worker recruitment - £1.300m ongoing, £2.600m one-off 

 
This growth is part of a total allocation of £5.200m which is being 
added to Children’s Services budgets over 4 years.  The investment is 
being deployed to increase the number of social workers to ensure that 
caseloads for individual workers are at manageable levels for their 
experience. 
 

2.4.2 Placement demand pressures - £3.000m ongoing, £5.000m one-off 
This allocation recognised the increase in costs experienced within 
children’s social care as a result of both an increase in the quantity of 
placements required and the increased cost due to an increase in the 
complexity of the needs of children and young people. 
 

2.4.3 Home to School Transport SEN - £1.450m ongoing 
 
The allocation recognised both the increased pressures of greater 
numbers of children and young people with SEN and an increased 
cost of journeys and an additional pressure of transporting children 
and young people to pupil resource units or alternative provision when 
they have been permanently or temporarily excluded from mainstream 
schools. 
 

2.4.4 SEND assessment and planning - £0.275m ongoing 
 
The increase is to cover the staffing to assess and plan provision for 
children and young people with SEN. 
 

2.4.5 Increase in Special Guardianship placements - £1.097m ongoing 
 
This increase has ensured that the budget is in line with the current 
level of costs payable to family members and others who have taken 
parental responsibility for children under a special guardianship order.  
 
 
 
 

Page 9



6 
 

2.4.6 Children’s Homes - £0.450m ongoing 
 
The increase is to close the gap that had emerged between the budget 
allocated for children’s homes and the increased staffing necessary to 
meet the needs of children and young people placed in those homes. 
 

2.4.7 Foster Carers - £0.060m ongoing 
 
The allocation is to cover the cost of the inflation increase applied to 
foster care allowances from April 2019. 
 

2.4.8 Care Leavers - £0.402m one-off 
 
Legislation has been enacted which places additional statutory duties 
on the Authority for care leavers.  There is a shortfall between the 
additional funding currently being received from central government 
and the costs being incurred by the Authority in meeting these 
additional duties. 
 

2.4.9 Children’s Participation - £0.080m one-off 
 
The budget allocation is to cover a reduction applied to Children’s 
Services in 2018-19.  A review was conducted of the support provided 
to children and young people to participate in decision-making and 
consultation and there was a shortfall between the budget reduction 
applied and the savings that could be achieved.  This allocation is 
temporary whilst the service looks to identify other options for 
consideration.  
 

2.4.10 Child Protection - £0.105m one-off 
 
The allocation is towards the costs of staff that are currently required to 
respond to the increased number of children on child protection plans.  
Staffing will be reduced if the number of children on plans reduces. 
 

2.4.11 Complex Case pooled budget - £0.250m one-off 
 
The budget has been allocated as a contingency for the Authority’s 
contribution to the pooled budget, recognising the increasing levels of 
spend that have been incurred in recent years. 
 

  

Page 10



7 
 

2.4.12 Mobile Working - £0.260m one-off 
 
The allocation is to develop solutions that will enable more flexible 
working which is expected to result in cost benefits and improvements 
in up to date information. 
 

2.4.13 Children in Care Legal Proceedings - £1.050m one-off 
 
This allocation is for the costs of legal fees for court proceedings which 
have increased due to not only increased numbers of proceedings but 
also an increased use of external legal firms to present cases which 
has increased average costs per case. 

 
2.5 Risks 

 
There is a risk that the following issues could negatively impact on the 
portfolio’s forecast outturn position reported in the Forecast Summary above: 
 
Service Risk Sensitivity* 

£m 
Likelihood 

1=Low 
5=High 

Placements Increased number of  children 
requiring placements 

£1.000m - 
£2.500m 

4 

Social Care 
services 

Increase in referrals meeting 
social care thresholds 

£0.100m - 
£0.300m 

4 

All Data security breach resulting 
in fine 

£0.500m 3 

MATs Not meeting targets for 
Troubled Families data 
collection resulting in loss of 
income 

£0.300m 3 

Social Care 
services 

Inability to recruit and retain 
sufficient experienced workers 

Up to £1m 5 

 
*Sensitivity represents the potential negative impact on the outturn position 
should the event occur. 
 
  

Page 11



8 
 

2.6 Earmarked Reserves 
 

Earmarked reserves totalling £8.865m are currently held to support future 
expenditure.  Details of these reserves are as follows: 
 
Reserve Description Amount 

£m 
Troubled Families 4.083 

Standards Fund (Schools) 1.170 

Children’s Services ICT Improvements 0.746 

Rates refunds (schools) 0.600 

Late claims to school staff pooled health absence scheme 0.534 

Other (below £0.5m individually) 1.732 

Total Earmarked Reserves 8.865 

 
2.7     Debt Position 

 
The profile of the debt raised, relating to income receivable by services within 
the Children’s Services department, is as follows: 
 

0-30 
Days 
£m 

31-365 
Days 
£m 

1-2 
Years 

£m 

2-3 
Years 

£m 

3-4 
Years 

£m 

4-5 
Years 

£m 

Over 5 
Years 

£m 
Total 
£m 

0.361 1.296 0.065 0.052 0.011 0.011 0.005 1.801 
20% 72% 3% 3% 1% 1% 0% 100% 

 
Debt aged between 31 and 365 days includes Catering charges of £0.529m 
between 31 and 60 days old to Academy Trusts.  As at 25 September 2019, 
approximately £0.300m of this debt had been paid as schools returned from 
the summer break.  
 
In the 12 months up to the end of August 2019 the value of debt that has been 
written off totals £0.036m. 
 
3. Financial Considerations 

 
As detailed in the report. 
 
4. Other Considerations 

 
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been 
considered: legal, prevention of crime and disorder, equality of opportunity, 

Page 12



9 
 

environmental, health, human resources, property, social value and transport 
considerations. 
 
5. Key Decision 

 
No 

 
6. Call-in 

 
No 

 
7. Background Papers 

 
Held on file within Children’s Services Department.  Officer contact details – 
Karen Gurney, extension 38755. 
 
8. Officer Recommendations 

 
That the Cabinet Member notes the report. 
 
 
 

Jane Parfrement    Peter Handford 
Executive Director   Director of Finance 
Children’s Services           & ICT 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

PUBLIC 
Author:  Karen Gurney (x38755) 

Agenda Item 3(c)  

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

CABINET MEMBER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE 
 

5th November 2019 
 

Joint Report of the Executive Director of Children’s Services and the 
Director of Finance & ICT 

 
DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT MONITORING 2019-20 – PERIOD 5 

(as at 31 August 2019) 
 

(YOUNG PEOPLE) 
 
 

1. Purpose of the Report 
 

To provide the Cabinet Member with an update of the Revenue Budget 
position of the Dedicated Schools Grant (Young People portfolio) for 2019-20 
up to the end of August 2019 (Period 5). 
 
2. Information and Analysis 

 
2.1. Forecast Summary 

 
The expected Dedicated Schools Grant and 6th form grant income due to the 
Authority in 2019-20 is £373.016m.  This, plus the expected use of reserves 
for 2019-20 of £2.161m covering planned expenditure, makes total income 
available to fund expenditure of £375.177m. 
 
The Revenue Budget Monitoring Statement prepared at period 5 shows 
projected year-end expenditure of £377.391m.  The expected overspend 
compared to income is £2.215m, however this includes the benefit of £0.452m 
underspend which is ring-fenced to schools, the overspend falling to the 
Authority is therefore £2.667m. 
 
Earmarked reserves of £0.551m are available to support this overspend. 
 
The Department for Education have confirmed in the spending round that all 
Authorities will see an increase of between 8% and 17% per head of 
population to their High Needs Block funding for 2020-21.  Looking at total 

Page 15

Agenda Item 3(c)



2 
 

allocated High Needs Block funding and the 2-18 population for 2019-20, the 
increase for Derbyshire in 2019/20 could be between £5.598m and £11.895m 
however at the time of writing this report, the precise details of the 
methodology and the data to be used are not known in sufficient detail. 
 
The significant areas of expenditure and income are shown in the table below: 
 

  Controllable 
Budget £m 

Projected 
Actuals £m 

Forecast 
Over/(Under) 

Spend £m 

Expenditure    

Central School 
Services Block 6.890 6.706 (0.184) 

Re-pooled school 
funding 4.997 4.545 (0.452) 

Early Years Block 44.076 44.115 0.039 
High Needs Block 61.208 64.020 2.812 
Schools Block 258.272 258.272 - 
Total Expenditure 375.443 377.658 2.215 
Dedicated Schools 
Grant Income (375.176) (375.176) - 

(Surplus)/Deficit 0.267 2.482 2.215 
 
2.2. Key Variances 

 
2.2.1. Central School Services Block, underspend £0.184m 

The underspend is primarily due to support to schools to meet KS1 
pupil/teacher ratios being lower than anticipated when the budget was 
set. 
 

2.2.2. Re-pooled school funding, underspend £0.452m 
Due to lower projected spend supporting the additional costs in 
primary schools where staff are on maternity leave and the costs of 
insurance being lower than the allocated budget. 
 

2.2.3. High Needs Block, overspend £2.812m 
 
£0.791m of the overspend is due to the expected costs of the team 
supporting children and young people who have been permanently or 
temporarily excluded or are being supported as part of a preventative 
measure and is due to increased numbers of children and young 
people being supported.  The additional support paid to primary 
schools for pupils with high needs is also above the allocated budget 

Page 16



3 
 

reflecting the increased number of pupils being supported over the 
past 3 years.  Finally, expenditure on out county placements reflects 
the increase in the number of placements in the second half of 2018-
19.  The allocated budget was set before the impact of these 
placements was apparent. 
 

2.3. Risks 
 

There is a risk that the following issues could negatively impact on the 
portfolio’s forecast outturn position reported in the Forecast Summary above: 
 
Service Risk Sensitivity* 

£m 
Likelihood 

1=Low 
5=High 

High needs block 
placements and top-
ups 

Increased number of  
children requiring 
placements or support 

£0.5m - 
£2m 

4 

 
*Sensitivity represents the potential negative impact on the outturn position 
should the event occur. 
 
3. Financial Considerations 

 
As detailed in the report. 
 
4. Other Considerations 

 
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been 
considered: legal, prevention of crime and disorder, equality of opportunity, 
environmental, health, human resources, property, social value and transport 
considerations. 
 
5. Key Decision 

 
No 

 
6. Call-in 

 
No 

 
7. Background Papers 

 
Held on file within Children’s Services Department.  Officer contact details – 
Karen Gurney, extension 38755. 
 
8. Officer Recommendations 

Page 17



4 
 

 
That the Cabinet Member notes the report. 
 

Jane Parfrement    Peter Handford 
Executive Director   Director of Finance 
Children’s Services           & ICT 

Page 18



1 
 

PUBLIC 
Author: Sue Pegg (x36040) 

                           
 Agenda Item No: 3(d) 

 
 

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

CABINET MEMBER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE 
 

5 November 2019 
   

  Report of the Executive Director for Children’s Services  
  

NEW PRIMARY SCHOOLS AT BOULTON MOOR AND HIGHFIELDS FARM – 
YOUNG PEOPLE 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report   

   
To update the Cabinet Member on the progress with the new primary 
schools at Boulton Moor and Highfields Farm, and to obtain Cabinet’s 
approval for the funding of the Project Development Fund and post-
opening support for the new schools. 

 
2. Information and Analysis 
 

Boulton Moor 
 
On 24 November 2015 (minute number 407/15), Cabinet approved a 
consultation on the opening of a new primary school at Boulton Moor to 
accommodate the pupils from the first phase of a development with 1058 
houses . On 12 July 2016 (minute number 203/16) Cabinet received a 
report on the outcome of that consultation.  Cabinet approved the process 
of inviting expressions of interest from multi academy trusts to run the 
school. This process was known as the ‘free school presumption’ under 
Section 6A of the Education and Inspections Act 2006, and the interviews 
with the multi academy trusts took place in December 2017.  The 
Authority’s assessment of the applications was forwarded to the 
Department for Education (DfE) and Spencer Academy Trust was 
selected.  Since then the Authority has been working with the Trust to 
develop the project with a view to opening the school in September 2020. 
 
Under the terms of the Section 106 agreement, the developer was 
required to provide £4,149,170 in capital funds for the primary school and 
those funds were reported to Cabinet on 14 September 2017 (minute 
number 253/17) and 21 March 2019 (minute number 65/19). On 26 July 
2018, Cabinet approved an additional £1,761,590 (minute number 190/18) 
to provide a total of £5,910,760 to build a one form entry school with core 
facilities to allow it to be expanded to a 2 form entry school if necessary to 
meet the demand from later phases of the housing development.  The 

Page 19

Agenda Item 3(d)



 
 

2 
 

contract for the school was awarded under the SCAPE framework as 
reported to Cabinet on 18 April 2019 (minute number 84/19) and 
construction was due to start over the Autumn.  There were delays 
gaining access to the site and that has impacted on the construction 
programme.  As a result, the completion is likely to be delayed and it has 
been agreed with the Trust that the school should open in September 
2021.   
 
Highfields Farm 
 
On 14 September 2017 (minute number 252/17), Cabinet approved a 
consultation on the opening of a new primary school at Highfields Farm to 
accommodate the pupils from a development of 1200 houses. On 11 
January 2018 (minute number 11/18) Cabinet received a report on the 
outcome of that consultation.  Cabinet approved the process of inviting 
expressions of interest from multi academy trusts to run the school under 
the ‘free school presumption’ process and interviews with various multi-
academy trusts took place in May 2018.  The Authority’s assessment of 
the applications was forwarded to the Department for Education (DfE) and 
Spencer Academy Trust was also selected for this second school.  Since 
then the Authority has been working with the Trust to develop the project 
with a view to opening the school in September 2020. 
 
Under the terms of the Section106 agreement, the developer was 
required to provide £4,384,581 in capital funds for the primary school and 
those funds were reported to Cabinet on 11 July 2019. On 26 July 2018, 
Cabinet approved an additional £1,126,000 (minute number 190/18) to 
provide a total of £5,510,581 to build a one form entry school.  The final 
contract price exceeded the available budget and therefore on 16 
September 2019, a further £689,419 was approved by the Executive 
Director through an urgent paper making the final budget £6,200,000. The 
content of that paper will be reported to Cabinet separately in due course.  
The contract for the school was also awarded under the SCAPE 
framework approval for which was given by Cabinet as detailed above and 
construction started over the Autumn.   In view of the short timescales for 
delivering the school, a modern form of construction (modular) was 
selected.  Under this form of construction, the sections of building are 
constructed off site under factory conditions and then craned into position 
on site.  This is the first time Derbyshire County Council has used this 
form of construction for a complete school but a similar school has 
recently been delivered for Derby City Council as well as other Authorities 
across the Country. 
 
 
 
Funding Support 
 

Page 20



 
 

3 
 

Under the ‘free school presumption’ process, the successful Multi 
Academy Trust is entitled to a project development fund for each school 
however where the same trust is opening two schools in the same year 
there are expected to be economies of scale and the second payment is 
reduced.  The payments are in line with funding paid by the DfE for Free 
Schools delivered directly by the Department and are £212,750 for the 
first school and £150,000 for the second.  The total for these two school 
would therefore be £362,750 payable from the Dedicated Schools Grant 
(DSG) Growth Fund Reserve. 
 
Once the schools are open, the Authority also becomes responsible for 
providing growth funding whilst the schools’ pupil rolls increase towards 
their full capacities.  This post-opening support, which will be based on the 
rates set out in the DfE guidance, “A guide to new mainstream free school 
revenue funding 2019 to 2020, recognises that in the early years of 
operation the pupil numbers at the schools are insufficient to fund fully the 
schools’ running costs. It is difficult to state precisely the level of post-
opening support required as this will be driven in part by the profile of 
pupil admissions and the number of pupils at the schools. However, a 
figure of £0.350 million per school, spread over the 7 years after opening 
would be a reasonable estimate. This total is made up of two elements. 
The non-staffing resources element is based on the number of new 
children starting each year funded at £250 per pupil. The second element, 
known as the Leadership support, is a lump sum payment of between 
£13,500 and £80,500, the amount payable being determined by the 
number of year groups that do not yet have pupils. This funding will be 
met from the current and future years’ Growth Fund allocations within the 
Schools Block and the allocations are a matter for the Schools Forum. 
 
Finally, the schools will both be funded by the local authority’s approved 
mainstream funding formula. However, due to timing issues, children 
starting in each September will not trigger DSG funding until the following 
April. Funding for each new year group for the period September to March 
will therefore also have to be met from the Growth Fund. The call on the 
Growth Fund will depend on the number of pupils and their characteristics 
e.g. levels of deprivation and prior attainment. However, it is estimated 
that an average of around £0.060 million per school per year will be 
required for the next 7 years.  
 
Derbyshire’s Growth Fund allocation for 2019-20 was £2.352 million and 
is available to support Key Stage 1 classes and significant in year 
increases in pupil numbers, including those arising from new schools to 
meet basic need requirements. The estimated level of financial support to 
the new schools set out above should therefore be affordable. However, if 
future years’ Growth Fund allocations were to reduce the post-opening 
support and formula funding allocations might have to be met partially by 
a reduction in other schools’ formula budgets. 

Page 21



 
 

4 
 

 
3. Financial Considerations  
 

The financial considerations are outlined in Section 2 of the report. 
 
4. Social Value Considerations 

 
This funding is to increase the capacity of the school and ensure that 
there are sufficient school places to meet the need generated by the new 
housing. 
 

5. Legal Considerations     
 

Local Authorities under Section 13 of the Education Act 1996 have a duty 
to secure efficient primary and secondary education are available to meet 
the needs of the population in their areas.  

 
6. Other Considerations     
 

In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been 
considered:- prevention of crime & disorder, equality of opportunity, 
environmental, health, human resources, property and transport 
considerations. 

 
7. Key Decision   Yes 

 
8. Call-in   
 

Is it necessary for the call-in period to be waived in respect of the 
decisions being proposed in the report?  No 
 

9. Background Papers   
  
These are held on file in the Children’s Services Development Section.  

 
10. Officer Recommendation    
 

It is recommended that the Cabinet Member: 
 

10.1 Considers the progress on the new primary schools at Boulton Moor 
and Highfields Farm 

 
10.2 Considers and approves the funding of the Project Development 

Fund amounting to £362,750 to be paid to Spencer Academy Trust 
 
10.3 Consider and approves the payment of post-opening support in line 

with DfE guidance referred to in section 2.  

Page 22



 
 

5 
 

 
 

Jane Parfrement 
Executive Director for Children’s Services 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

“PUBLIC”  
 
Author: Ian Price (32330)    

Agenda Item 3(e)                 
 

 
DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
CABINET MEMBER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE 

 
5 November 2019 

 
Report of the Executive Director for Children’s Services 

  
 

REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL NON SCHOOL BASED PROVISION FOR THE 
DUKE OF EDINBURGH’S AWARD  

 
 
1. Purpose of Report  

 
To highlight the recent review and consultation process in regard to the 
existing Duke of Edinburgh’s Award (DofE) council led provision and to 
recommend an alternative strategy for supporting and delivering the 
Award scheme outside of schools. 
 

2. Information and Analysis  
 
The County Council’s support for the Duke of Edinburgh’s Award 
(Derbyshire) is administered by the Sports and Outdoor Education 
Services (SORE). Until April 2018 the service administered the county-
wide award for DofE under licence from the central charity.   
 
However, in 2018 the Charity created some major changes to the 
delivery process of the Award throughout the country, switching from 
geographically administered awards (i.e. Derbyshire County wide) 
operated by local authorities under licence, to a new system of directly 
licencing individual schools for the delivery of DofE award scheme.   
 
At the same time as changing to the afore mentioned school-based 
licences, the DofE also informed the council that it would need to obtain a 
Derbyshire targeted licence to continue any work with existing voluntary 
or open award centres or continue its work with targeted groups of young 
people outside of any provision in schools.  
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 3(e)



2 
 

The above changes fundamentally changed the cost benefit analysis of 
operating the Award scheme in Derbyshire.  Though licence costs are 
approximately £2,500; because of the associated support and staffing 
costs to operate the infrastructure for a relatively small amount of young 
people the Council is now faced with high level costs for providing 
support services to the significantly reduced cohort of young people.  The 
total cost of this is currently estimated at an annual budget figure of 
approximately £35,000 - £38,000 (see section 3 for further financial 
details).  
 
As a result the Council has needed to review the award scheme changes 
by negotiating a current licence period of six months, with a renewal 
option to either extend this or to renew a full 12 month licence with DofE 
regional office subsequent to a review outcome.  This timeframe has 
enabled the SORE Service to review the current situation and undertake 
a consultation process and impact analysis to inform long term decisions 
by the County Council regarding the sustainability of maintaining the 
current council led provision and targeted licence.  
 
The consultation has now been completed and the service has collected 
information from all operating DofE groups and leaders, as well as 
obtaining submissions from a number of parents in regard to their 
concerns over the impact of any changes.  
 
The overwhelming response to the consultation has indicated that award 
scheme leaders, young people and their parents / carers, would like to 
see a continuation of some form of non-schools based provision in 
Derbyshire.  However, they identify a potential sustainability issue with 
the current provision and support for voluntary groups. The annual 
renewals and financial sustainability constraints for the Council is, they 
feel, inhibiting recruitment and the growth of voluntary groups; with the 
consensus of responses identifying  that they would like to have a period 
of sustainable operation of at least 2-3 years to enable groups to recruit, 
deliver activities and follow participants through to completion of their 
awards.  
 
These leader responses are reflected in our impact analysis of groups 
identifying less than 100 young people are currently undertaking the 
Award with voluntary or targeted groups.  The analysis also identifies a 
small number of young people currently undertaking Awards who will not 
have achieved completion by 31 September 2019. 
 
Indicated impact numbers are:  Bronze – 10, Silver – 11,    Gold – 17. 
 
However, mitigating this impact approximately 12 of the Bronze and 
Silver participants could transfer back to school groups, as they attend a 

Page 26



3 
 

school that holds a current direct licence.  In addition to this the gold 
participants are able to transfer to DofE Direct to complete awards 
 

In summary the impact investigation and analysis indicates a total 
estimated number that are directly affected if the current licence is not 

renewed in 2019/20 would be approximately 10 – 12 participants. 
 
In conclusion the major changes to the national DofE Award appear to be 
directly impacting young people who either do not have access to directly 
licenced schools or for whom a school based award is not necessarily 
appropriate to meet their needs. In addition to this the current licence 
system and the need for ongoing financial reviews for non-statutory 
provision, due to the cost of the support provision and its impact on 
Council financial constraints, are also impacting voluntary and community 
led groups and currently is affecting the long term sustainability of 
developing opportunities for young people.  
 
In view of the above factors it is considered that the current licence and 
model of council led provision for non-schools groups is not currently the 
best available model.  It is recommended that a community development 
approach be adopted to support the existing voluntary centres to create a 
directly licensed provision, thereby creating a community based 
independently operating structure.  This would achieve a more 
sustainable framework in which to develop long term opportunities for 
young people to access the Award. 

 
3. Financial Considerations 

 
With effect from 1 April 2018 the DofE charity have directly licenced and 
charged schools for access to the award scheme, including Derbyshire 
secondary schools. This has in effect transferred any income from 
schools, used to offset council support costs, directly to the central award 
scheme. 
 
Whilst this has increased central charity income from approx. £6,000 to 
approx. £48,000 annually. It has also had the effect of significantly 
reducing the ‘economy of scale’ for the existing council support costs 
which remain largely the same at approximately £32-35,000 per year.  
 
During the last 12 months officers have undertaken significant 
investigation into attracting external funding for Award based work. 
Unfortunately it does appear that we have not been able to identify any 
funding bodies that will fund local authority costs for the delivery of 
existing services. This has created significant funding issues for the 
service. 

 

Page 27



4 
 

The SORE Services are tasked with achieving the target of becoming 
financially self-sustaining as outlined to Cabinet within the Enterprising 
Council Strategy as presented by the Strategic Director – 
Commissioning, Communities and Policy (31 January 2019).   
 
It is identified that changes undertaken by the Duke of Edinburgh’s Award 
charity presents a significantly increased financial risk for the council 
going forward, with little apparent opportunity of creating a cost effective 
support structure outside of some form of corporate or charitable 
sponsorship agreement. 

 
4. Other Considerations 

 
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been 
considered – Legal and Human rights considerations, prevention of crime 
and disorder, equality of opportunity, health, environmental, transport 
and property considerations.  

 
5. Background Papers 

 
DofE CONSULTATION FEEDBACK & IMPACT ANALYSIS SUMMER 
2019 forms appendix A of this report. 
 

6. Key Decision 
 
No. 

 
7. Call-in  

  
Is it required that the Call-in period be waived in respect of the decisions 
being proposed within this report? /No.   

 
8.  Executive Director’s Recommendation   

 
That the cabinet member for Childrens Services approves a decision not 
to maintain the current licence structure and authorises officers to work in 
partnership with voluntary and community groups for a period of six 
months (to April 2020) to investigate creating a more sustainable 
community led provision for young people in Derbyshire to access the 
DofE Award scheme.  

 
Jane Parfrement 

Executive Director for Children’s Services 
 
 

 

Page 28



5 
 

Appendix a 
 

DUKE OF EDINBURGH’S AWARD (DERBYSHIRE CC) 
 

CONSULTATION FEEDBACK & IMPACT ANALYSIS 
 SUMMER 2019 

 
All of the Duke of Edinburgh’s Award (DofE) groups currently operate successfully 
under the current license held by Derbyshire CC and group leaders are 
complimentary of the guidance and support offered by the current Council provision. 
Volunteer leaders are clearly extremely committed to the groups that currently 
provide DofE opportunities away from the school setting.  This includes provision for 
young people with additional needs, out of education or in financial hardship; many 
of those whom it is recognised may benefit most from the Award.   
 
There is increasing concern from some parents and leaders over availability of DofE 
in areas where local schools do not hold a Licence, where schools limit numbers or 
where programmes are prohibitively expensive.  Currently the voluntary groups in 
these areas have enabled groups of young people who would otherwise be 
disenfranchised to access DofE provision.   
 
Whilst some of the existing groups (both special schools and other organisations) will 
be able to directly licence, they have concerns over the cost, increased workload and 
lack of local support available if they take this option.  DofE, however, have indicated 
they cannot directly licence voluntary centres or independent participants to continue 
with their programmes.  
 
In summary, the overwhelming response to the county wide consultation has 
indicated that DofE leaders, young people and their parents / carers, would like to 
see a continuation of some form of open provision in Derbyshire.   
 
The difficulty they identify is that annual extensions to the current situation are very 
limiting and the consensus is that they require a period of commitment to the 
provision of at least 2-3 years to enable groups to recruit, deliver activities and follow 
participants through to completion of their awards during a sustainable period.  In the 
current situation, whilst leaders are fully committed to their participants, the licence 
uncertainty has led to an inability to recruit and develop the existing provision. 
 
Whilst the review has been ongoing, council officers and volunteers have continued 
to support local groups to fulfil a programme that will enable those young people 
recruited in the last 12 months to complete their awards. They have also been 
working to ensure that any timeframe would also allow the option for special schools 
and uniformed organisations to consider all available options to either register 
directly with DofE or link into their own wider organisational licence (this exists for 
uniformed organisations like scouts and guides), thus minimising the potential 
impacts of a licence reduction for all groups, should this prove to be the eventual 
outcome of the review. 
 

Page 29



6 
 

The Derbyshire licence expired on 30th September 2019 Leaders have worked hard 
to facilitate the completion of awards by as many young people as possible before 
the current licence ended.   

 
It is not possible to determine whether some young people are still active with the 
Award if they are no longer attending groups. However, current indications predict 
that a relatively small group of young people will be affected as long as they have 
participated in the programme in recent months: 
 

Group Level of 
Award 

Predicted 
number of 
participants 

Details 

Chesterfield Open 
Award Centre 

Bronze 2 Young people not started their activities or missed an 
expedition 

 Silver 4 Young people not started their activities or missed an 
expedition 

 Gold 8-10 Various stages of completion, most now at university.  Could 
transfer to DofE Direct. 

South Derbyshire 
Open Centre 

Bronze 4 2 not yet ready for expeditions, 2 not started other 
activities. 

 Silver 4 Young people not started their activities or missed an 
expedition 

 Gold 4 Not done expeditions yet.  Could transfer to DofE Direct. 

Youlgrave DofE 
Group 

Bronze 4 
 

 Silver 3 
 

 Gold 3 Could transfer to DofE Direct. 

 

The estimated impact numbers affected indicate: 

 Bronze – 10, Silver – 11,    Gold – 17. 
 
However, approximately 12 of the Bronze and Silver participants could transfer back 
to school groups, as they attend a school that holds a current direct licence.  
Coupled with this the over 18 year gold participants are able to transfer to DofE 
Direct to complete awards (note: all those listed above are over 18yrs).   
 
Therefore the total estimated numbers not able to complete their current 
Award if the ‘targeted’ licence is not renewed will be approximately 10 – 12 
young people. 
 
Heather Staple, Award Manager 
Sports Outdoor & Residential Education Services 
Derbyshire County Council 

 
 

Page 30



Document is Restricted

Page 31

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of 
Regulation 21(1)(A) of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2000.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3(a) Confirmation of Nominations of School Governors
	3(b) Budget Monitoring 2019-20 - Period 5
	3(c) Dedicated Schools Grant Monitoring 2019-20 - Period 5
	3(d) New Primary Schools at Boulton Moor and Highfields Farm
	CABINET MEMBER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE
	5 November 2019
	NEW PRIMARY SCHOOLS AT BOULTON MOOR AND HIGHFIELDS FARM – YOUNG PEOPLE
	1. Purpose of Report
	To update the Cabinet Member on the progress with the new primary schools at Boulton Moor and Highfields Farm, and to obtain Cabinet’s approval for the funding of the Project Development Fund and post-opening support for the new schools.
	2. Information and Analysis
	5. Legal Considerations
	6. Other Considerations
	In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been considered:- prevention of crime & disorder, equality of opportunity, environmental, health, human resources, property and transport considerations.
	7. Key Decision   Yes
	8. Call-in
	Is it necessary for the call-in period to be waived in respect of the decisions being proposed in the report?  No
	9. Background Papers
	These are held on file in the Children’s Services Development Section.
	10. Officer Recommendation
	It is recommended that the Cabinet Member:


	3(e) Review of the council non-school based provision for the Duke of Edinburgh's Award
	6 Minutes

